
Plan Commission
Meeting Agenda - November 20, 2019

Page | 1

PUBLIC NOTICE & AGENDA
PLAN COMMISSION

2400 Springbrook Court, Beloit, WI  53511
7:00 PM

Wednesday, November 20, 2019

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

2. MINUTES
2.a. Consideration of the minutes from the October 23, 2019 Plan Commission meeting

Attachment

3. REPORTS
3.a. Consideration of Resolution approving an Extraterritorial two-lot Certified Survey for the

properties located at 3232 S Riverside Drive in the Town of Beloit 
Attachment

3.b. Consideration of a Resolution approving a two-lot Certified Survey map for the property located
at 656 Pleasant Street and portions of 627 and 714 Pleasant Street
Attachment

3.c. Consideration of an Ordinance to amend Section 12.07(3) and (6) of the Subdivision
Ordinance, Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit pertaining to
street standards 
Attachment

3.d. Consideration of an Ordinance to amend Sections 30.11(2)(c), (f), and (i) of the Outdoor Sign
Regulations, Chapter 30 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit relating to
address signs 
Attachment

4. STATUS REPORT ON PRIOR PLAN COMMISSION ITEMS

5. ADJOURNMENT

** Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the
needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request this service,
please contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511.

1

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/459382/10-23-2019_Plan_Commission_minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/473915/November_20_Staff_Report_3_a___CSM-2019-13__3232_S._Riverside_Drive__2-Lot__TOB_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/473917/November_20_Staff_Report_3__b___CSM-2019-14__656_Pleasant_Street_and_714_Pleasant_Street.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/473141/November_20_Staff_Report_3_c___Subdivision_Ordinance_Amendments.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/473177/November_20_Staff_Report_3_d___Sign_Ordinance_Amendments.pdf


1 |  P a g e

 

 

MEETING MINUTES 
PLAN COMMISSION 

2400 Springbrook Court, Beloit, WI 53511  
Wednesday, October 23, 2019 

7:00 PM 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
Meeting was called to order at 7:00PM by Vice-Chairperson Tim Weeden. Commissioners 
Robson, Johnson, Ruster, and Finnegan and Councilor Preuschl were present. 
Commissioners Faragher and Haynes were absent. 
 

2. MINUTES 
a. Consideration of the October 9, 2019 Plan Commission minutes 

Commissioner Robson moved to approve the minutes. Commissioner Johnson 
seconded the motion. Motion carried, voice vote. 
 

3. REPORTS 
a. Consideration of a Resolution approving a one-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the 

properties located at 1600-1682 Park Avenue 
Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Robson commented that she asked Ms. Christensen about requiring 
landscaping along Park Avenue and that she explained that the parking lot was already 
required to have landscaping since it was a new parking lot. 
 
Commissioner Johnson moved to approve the CSM. Commissioner Ruster seconded 
the motion. Motion carried, voice vote. 
 

4. STATUS REPORT ON PRIOR PLAN COMMISSION ITEMS  
Julie Christensen stated that the City Council approved the two Zoning Map Amendments 
related to the PUDs for Hendricks Commercial Properties.  She also indicated that the PUD 
Master Land Use Plan amendment on Townline and Whipple was approved.  Regarding the 
Conditional Use Permit for the outdoor seating area on Pleasant Street, the City Council 
removed the condition related to the meat smoker entirely.  Since the condition was just 
citing code requirements, it was not necessary to be a condition of approval.  At the next 
Plan Commission meeting, there should be two ordinances; one being sign ordinance to 

2



2 |  P a g e

 

allow Hendricks to be able to have projecting address signs and the other being a 
subdivision ordinance related to street widths.  The legal review has been completed on 
these two ordinances.  
 

5. ADJOURNMENT  
Motion was made by Commissioner Johnson, seconded by Commissioner Robson to 
adjourn the meeting. Motion passed, voice vote. Meeting adjourned at 7:10pm. 
 
 
Minutes respectfully submitted by Amber DesRoberts. 

 

3



  

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
Plan Commission Meeting Date:  November 20, 2019 

Agenda Item: 4.a. 

File Number:  CSM-2019-13 

 

General Information 

 
Applicant:  R.H. Batterman & Co. Inc., 2857 Bartells Drive Beloit, WI 53511 
 
Owner:  Elmer Benedetti 
 
Address/Location:  3232 S. Riverside Drive, Town of Beloit 
 
Applicant’s Request:  The applicant is proposing to subdivide one lot into two, to separate a 
garage onto a 0.23 acre parcel. The remaining parcel is approximately 1.74 acres.     
 
Jurisdiction:  Town of Beloit 
 

Staff Analysis 

 
Existing Conditions:  The property located at 3232 S. Riverside Drive is located in the Town of 
Beloit north of the city limits and east of the Rock River. The 1.97-acre parcel is currently zoned 
B-2, Local Business District, within the Town of Beloit and is, occupied by Benedetti’s Supper 
Club.  
 
Surrounding Land Use and Zoning:  To the south, the zoning is R-1, Single-Family Residential 
District, with single-family land uses. To the west, the zoning is R-1, Single-Family Residential 
District, with single-family land uses. To the north, the zoning is B-3; General Business District, 
with retail land uses. To the East, the zoning is B-3, General Business District, and has a vehicle 
repair land use. All adjacent properties are within the Town of Beloit. 
 
Proposed Land Use and Zoning:  The owner intends to subdivide one lot into two. The new lot 
will have a garage on a 0.23 acre parcel, and the remaining 1.74 acre lot will continue to be 
used as a restaurant for Benedetti’s Supper Club. 
 
City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan:  This property is listed as Community Commercial in the 
Future Land Use Map from the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
Municipal Utilities:  This property is not served by municipal utilities.   
 

4



  

Review Agent Comments:  The proposed Certified Survey Map (CSM) was sent to the City of 
Beloit Staff and Utility Contacts; no comments were received. 
 

The Rock County Planning and Development Committee is currently in the process of reviewing 
of this CSM. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached two-lot 
Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the property located at 3232 S. Riverside Drive in the Town of 
Beloit, subject to the following condition: 
 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds by December 
31, 2019 and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  Location & Zoning Map, Preliminary Certified Survey Map, City of Beloit CSM 
application, and Resolution. 
 
 
 
 
  

5



  

3232 S. Riverside Drive  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 

 
 
 
 

6



  
 

7



  

 
 
  

8



  

 
RESOLUTION 

APPROVING A TWO-LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP 
FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 3232 S. RIVERSIDE DRIVE 

 
WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the 

City of Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan 
Commission of the City of Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor 
subdivision of land within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 3232 
S. Riverside Drive in the Town of Beloit, containing 1.97 acres, more or less, is located within 
the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City of Beloit; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the attached 
two-lot Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land: 
 

LOT 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP DOCUMENT NO. 1326031, RECORDED IN 
VOLUME 20 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAPS ON PAGES 100-102, BEING PART 
OF OUT-LOT 11-31 OF THE ASSESSOR’S PLAT OF BELOIT TOWNSHIP, 
SITUATED IN PART OF GOVERNMENT LOT 7 OF SECTION 11, T. 1 N. R. 12 E. 
OF THE 4TH P.M., TOWN OF BELOIT, ROCK COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Plan Commission of the City of 

Beloit does hereby conditionally approve the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map for the 
property located at 3232 S. Riverside Drive in the Town of Beloit, subject to the following 
condition: 
 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds by December 
31, 2019 and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. 

 
Adopted this 20th day of November, 2019. 

 
 
  _ 
 James Faragher 
 Plan Commission Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  
Julie Christensen, 
Community Development Director 
 
 

9



November 20 Staff Report 3 (b), CSM-2019-14, 656 Pleasant Street and 714 Pleasant Street 

 
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
Plan Commission Meeting Date:  November 20, 2019 

Agenda Item:  4.b. 

File Number:  CSM-2019-14 

 

General Information 

 
Applicant:  R. H. Batterman & Co., Inc. 
 
Owner:  City of Beloit (Note:  The applicant has made an offer to purchase) 
 
Address/Location:  656 Pleasant Street and part of 627 & 714 Pleasant Street 
 
Applicant’s Request:  The applicant has proposed a 2-Lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the 
properties located at 656 Pleasant Street and part of 627 & 714 Pleasant Street in the City of 
Beloit.   
 

Staff Analysis 

 
Existing Conditions:  The area covered by this CSM contains a vacant church that was most 
recently used as the Angel Museum and the Steve Gregg Memorial Path along the river front. 
The City has hired H.R. Batterman to prepare a Plat of Survey to add land to the north and 
south of this parcel (see attachment).  

Proposed Land Division:  
Proposed Lot 1 will be 40,200 square feet and will contain the existing building and parking lot.  
A 19,600 square-foot Out-Lot will be created along the west property line of Lot 1 and along the 
east of the river for the bike and walking path. Multiple easements will be provided for the City 
including: storm sewer, bike path and lighting, public sidewalk, driveway access, and a 
dumpster enclosure.  

City Staff has received a purchase agreement from Visit Beloit. Lot 1 is proposed to be used as a 
headquarters for Visit Beloit and its partners along with an event space. The applicant intends 
on constructing a 7,827 square-foot addition to the south of the existing building in the future. 
Out-Lot 1 will be retained by the City for public access to the path and river.  
 
Surrounding Land Use and Zoning:  There are commercial uses zoned CBD-2, Central Business 
District Fringe, to the south of the subject property. To the west across the river are commercial 
uses zoned M-1, Light Manufacturing District. To the north is a public parking lot zoned PLI, 
Public Lands and Institutions District. To the east is Beloit College with PLI, Public Lands and 

10



November 20 Staff Report 3 (b), CSM-2019-14, 656 Pleasant Street and 714 Pleasant Street 

Institutions District zoning. The applicant has requested a zoning change from PLI, Public Lands 
and Institutions to CBD-2, Central Business District Fringe. This will come before the Plan 
Commission at the next meeting.   
 
City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  The Downtown Redevelopment Plan 
recommends Planned Mixed Use for the subject properties. The proposed land division is 
consistent with this recommendation. This request supports Strategic Goal #3 by creating 
economic growth. 
 
Municipal Utilities:  The subject property is served by municipal utilities.  
 
Review Agent Comments:  The proposed Certified Survey Map (CSM) was sent to the City of 
Beloit Staff and Utility Contacts who provided the following comments: 
 
AT&T stated they have cable along the west side of Pleasant Street north of 604 Pleasant Street 
and the conduit and manhole system runs under Pleasant Street along the east side of the 
street. Relocation of AT&T facilities may be compensable.  
 
Engineering would like enlarged details of easements with dimensions on the final Certified 
Survey Map and easement provisions provided for all easements.  
  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached 2-Lot Certified 
Survey Map (CSM) for the properties located at 656 Pleasant Street and parts of 627 and 714 
Pleasant Street in the City of Beloit, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Enlarged details of easements with dimensions shall be provided on the Final Certified 
Survey Map.   

2. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds by November 
30, 2019 and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  Location Map, Preliminary Plat of Survey, Preliminary Certified Survey Map, 
Site Plan, and Application. 

 
 
 
 
 

11



November 20 Staff Report 3 (b), CSM-2019-14, 656 Pleasant Street and 714 Pleasant Street 

 
 

12



November 20 Staff Report 3 (b), CSM-2019-14, 656 Pleasant Street and 714 Pleasant Street 
 

13



November 20 Staff Report 3 (b), CSM-2019-14, 656 Pleasant Street and 714 Pleasant Street 

14



November 20 Staff Report 3 (b), CSM-2019-14, 656 Pleasant Street and 714 Pleasant Street 

 

15



November 20 Staff Report 3 (b), CSM-2019-14, 656 Pleasant Street and 714 Pleasant Street 

16



November 20 Staff Report 3 (b), CSM-2019-14, 656 Pleasant Street and 714 Pleasant Street 

 
RESOLUTION 

APPROVING A TWO-LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP 
FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 

656 PLEASANT STREET AND PARTS OF 627 AND 714 PLEASANT STREET 
 

WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the 
City of Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan 
Commission of the City of Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor 
subdivision of land within the jurisdiction of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 656 
Pleasant Street and parts of 627 and 714 Pleasant Street, containing 0.92 acres, more or less, is 
located within the jurisdiction of the City of Beloit; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the attached 
two-lot Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land: 
 

PARTS OF BLUFF LOT 35 AND BLUFF LOT 36 OF THE ORIGINAL PLAT 
OF BELOIT, ALSO PARCELS A AND B AS RECORDED IN DOCUMENT 
NO. _______________, BEING ALL A PART OF GOVERNMENT LOTS 5 
AND 6 OF SECTION 35, T. 1 N., R. 12 E., OF THE 4TH P.M., CITY OF 
BELOIT, ROCK COUNTY, WISCONSIN.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Plan Commission of the City of 

Beloit does hereby conditionally approve the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map for the 
property located at 656 Pleasant Street and parts of 627 and 714 Pleasant Street, subject to the 
following conditions: 
 

1. Enlarged details of easements with dimensions shall be provided on the Final 
Certified Survey Map.   

2. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds by 
November 30, 2019 and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services 
Division. 

 
Adopted this 20th day of November, 2019. 

 
 
  _ 
 James Faragher, Plan Commission Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
Julie Christensen, 
Community Development Director 

17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26


	Plan Commission Agenda
	2018-1837 - Attachment
	2018-1835 - Attachment
	2018-1887 - Attachment
	2018-1834 - Attachment
	2018-1836 - Attachment

